Boughton Monchelsea Parish Council

Minutes of the Boughton Monchelsea Parish Council Planning & Licensing Committee meeting held on 14th June 2022 at 7pm in the parish office within Boughton Monchelsea village hall

Present: Cllrs D. Smith (Chair)

A. Humphryes

L. Date R. Edmans C. Jessel

Clerk

3 residents

3 representatives from Boughton service station / car wash / florists

1. Apologies: Cllrs Garland, Martin, Stevens, Redfearn and Roome

2. Notification of late items for the agenda: None

3. Declaration of interests: None

4. Applications considered:

22/502627

Boughton Service Station, Heath Road, Boughton Monchelsea Retention of existing hand car wash facility and office / customer waiting room and proposed alterations including installation of acoustic enclosure and provision of a new customer parking area (part retrospective)

Neighbouring residents and service station representatives were present at the meeting and expressed their views on the application.

Following discussion amongst planning committee members it was agreed that the Parish Council would not be removing its objections but would not object to the proposed acoustic enclosure on noise grounds. The efforts of the applicant to address noise were respected however concerns remained regarding the visual impact of the enclosure.

It was agreed that the Parish Council wish to see the application refused for the following planning reasons. If MBC are minded to approve it then the application should be reported to planning committee for decision.

- We are extremely concerned at this visually intrusive, intensified business use of the site in the context of the adjacent conservation area and listed buildings
- MBC's Cock Street Conservation Area appraisal notes that the Civic Amenities Act of 1967 defines a conservation area as 'an area of architectural or historic interest the character and appearance of which it is desirable to preserve or enhance'. It goes on to say that 'Out of a total of 65 listed buildings in the overall parish, 4 fall within the Cock Street Conservation Area'. The appraisal concludes that 'the main threats to preserving or enhancing the character come from a variety of internal and external sources...Perhaps most visible to the casual observer is the impact of the commercial and residential development on the fringes of the designated area, in essence the garage on Heath Road to the east....Further encroachment on the historic environment should be avoided'

- MBC's conservation area management plan notes the 'negative impact of the
 petrol station on the setting of the conservation area' and states 'As and when the
 opportunity arises, every effort should be made to reduce the visual impact of
 signage on this site, and/or secure a use that is more sympathetic to the setting
 of the conservation area'. The proposal for a visually intrusive car wash facility
 and office / waiting room conflicts with the stated aims of both the appraisal and
 management plan.
- The applicant's heritage statement mentions the conservation area but simply states that the petrol station is 'nearby', ignoring the references to negative impacts contained within the MBC documents. The heritage statement is inadequate and does not acknowledge the concerns expressed in the conservation area appraisal and management plan.
- Due to its close proximity to the conservation area, we would expect MBC's conservation officer to be fully consulted on the proposal. We note that the officer has not commented on previous applications relating to this site.
- We acknowledge the efforts made by the applicant to provide an acoustic enclosure however we are concerned at the visual impact of this, adjacent to the conservation area
- Visibility is significantly impaired for drivers wishing to turn right out of the site
 after having their vehicles cleaned and we have witnessed car wash staff having
 to see vehicles out on to Heath Road. This is completely unacceptable and
 should have been fully considered as part of this planning application. The entry
 and exit points from the site, even for the petrol station, also need to be reviewed.
 Visibility is significantly impaired by the illuminated sign.
- There are now five businesses operating from the site petrol station, car repairs, car wash, car sales and flower shop. Four of these were there previously but the introduction of the car wash has created significant safety hazards both on and off site, with additional traffic, cars parked up waiting to be cleaned and queueing out on to Heath Road. KCC should fully assess the impact on highway safety resulting from this proposal. Additionally, it should be noted that previous planning permission for the car wash was based on a site with no fuel sales
- We appreciate that the site has historical use as a petrol station, garage and shop however in years gone by this was aesthetically low key and in keeping with the semi-rural nature of the village. The incremental growth of the site, including the large illuminated sign, car wash bay and associated structures now has a very urban feel which is completely out of character with the adjacent conservation area
- Policy PWP3 of the Boughton Monchelsea NHP covers protection of nondesignated heritage assets and states that 'The protection extended by this policy extends to all oast houses within the Neighbourhood Plan area'. The proposed jet wash facility would negatively impact the setting of the adjacent oast house and therefore fails to comply with this policy
- Policy LRE1 of the Boughton Monchelsea NHP states that proposals will be supported where they are neighbourly in terms of their visual, noise, smell and other impacts on adjoining uses. The proposed car wash facility does not comply with these requirements and is therefore not supported by the Parish Council
- It is unclear whether any additional signage or lighting will be required to facilitate the proposal. If so, this should be detailed. The Cock Street conservation area appraisal acknowledges the clutter of signs which detract from the buildings and open spaces that make up the conservation area and states that an approach to reduce such signage would be welcome. In terms of lighting, policy PWP 10 of

the Boughton Monchelsea NHP states that lighting must be designed and managed to reduce light pollution and any harmful visual impact on neighbouring activities and the character of the area.

22/502368 61 Haste Hill Road, Boughton Monchelsea Demolition of existing detached garage and erection of a single storey rear extension

The Parish Council wish to comment on the application as follows:

- The proposal is incongruous in scale to the existing property, doubling its footprint
- We are concerned at potential shading of adjacent properties

22/502602 Longridge, Heath Road, Boughton Monchelsea Conversion of existing garage to an annexe with the erection of a first floor extension ancillary to the main dwelling

No objection however MBC should impose a condition such that the annexe remains ancillary to the main dwelling in perpetuity

22/501368 Unit 1, Maidstone Exchange, Cuxton Road, Maidstone
Advertisement consent for 8 no. aluminium panel signs with full
colour digital printed logos, to be mounted on fencing

No objection / comment

- 5. Any other business : None
- 6. Date of next meeting: To be confirmed.

Meeting closed at 7.45pm